
 
 

CITY OF CRAIG 
COUNCIL AGENDA AMENDED 

APRIL 21, 2022 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 6:30 PM 

ROLL CALL 
Mayor Tim O’Connor, Hannah Bazinet, Jim See, Julie McDonald, Michael Kampnich, 
Chanel McKinley, Millie Schoonover 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Items listed below will be enacted by one motion. If separate discussion is desired on an item, that item 
may be removed and placed on the regular meeting agenda.  

• Meeting Minutes April 7, 2022 
 

HEARING FROM THE PUBLIC 
• Resolution 22-11, Authorizing the Craig City School District to execute all agreements and         

associated documents with the US Department of Agriculture, Rural development regarding grants 
related to the biomass boiler at the Craig High School. 

 
READING OF CORRESPONDENCE 

• Craig High School Project Graduation April 4th, 2022 
 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
• Resolution 22-11, Authorizing the Craig City School District to execute all agreements and         

associated documents with the US Department of Agriculture, Rural development regarding grants 
related to the biomass boiler at the Craig High School. 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

•  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
• Consider Confirmation of City Clerk Appointment 
• Derby Discussion 

 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
To provide public comment to the council remotely, contact the Craig City Clerk at 
cityclerk@craigak.com, before 5:00 p.m. by the day of the council meeting. City council meetings may be 
viewed at: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTou8Pn03MIEjLLb9Em0Xrg.  
 

mailto:cityclerk@craigak.com
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTou8Pn03MIEjLLb9Em0Xrg


CITY OF CRAIG 
COUNCIL MEETING  
THURSDAY APRIL 7, 2022 

ROLL CALL 
Timothy O’Connor, Mayor called the meeting to order at 6:35 p.m. Present were Julie 
McDonald, Millie Schoonover, Jim See, and Timothy O’Connor. Hannah Bazinet and 
Michael Kampnich were absent and excused. Chanel McKinley attended by telephone. 

Staff present: Brian Templin, City Administrator; Hans Hjort, Harbormaster; Victoria 
Merritt, Recreation Director; Tsai, EMS Assistant; RJ Ely, Police Chief; Samantha Wilson, 
City Planner; Trinity Scheidecker, fill in City Clerk. 

Audience present:  None.  

CONSENT AGENDA 
1. City Council Meeting Minutes of March 17, 2022

JULIE MCDONALD Moved to adopt the Consent Agenda. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

HEARING FROM THE PUBLIC 
None. 

READING OF CORRESPONDENCE 
1. Alaska CAMA Company, LLC, 2022 Assessment Fieldwork Letter
2. Steve Silver Status Report

REPORTS FROM CITY OFFICIALS 

Major- Tim O’Connor spoke of the recent budget meetings that have taken place and made a 
comment about the recent hiring of employees along with the jobs that are still available. 

Administrator- Provided a written report. Brian Templin added to his report during the meeting, 
which included, the invitation of Senator Murkowski to the City of Craig, along with, seeking the 
council’s opinion on creating a resolution to give the Craig School District authorization on their 
grant for the Bio-Mass Boiler. 

Treasurer- Provided a written report.  

City Planner- Provided a written report.  

EMS Coordinator- Provided a written report. 

Harbor Master- Provided a written report. Hans Hjort added at the meeting that they had hired a 
full-time Harbor Billing Clerk and have brought Michelle Maize back up to train the new 
employee. 

Return to Top



Library- Provided a written report. 

Police Chief- Provided a written report. Chief Ely had added to his report that they have lost their 
summer/seasonal police officer that they were going to hire due to injury while on the job. He also 
added that the DMV will only have one agent for three months, so hours are likely to change to 
accommodate for the shortage of agents. 

Recreation Director- Provided a written report. Victoria also added that there will be a bazaar 
May 29th , basketball has started for the elementary students, and the Blessing of the Fleet will take 
place on Memorial Day.   

Parks & Public Facilities- Provided a written report. 

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
1. Resolution No. 22-09: Amending the Employee Handbook
    SEE/SCHOONOVER Moved to Adopt Resolution No. 22-09, Amending 

the City of Craig Employee Handbook, adding 
section 315-Employee Aquatic Center Passes. 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY BY ROLL 
CALL VOTE 

3.Resolution No. 22-10: Appointing A Vice Mayor for the City of Craig
The council discussed the appointment and nominated Jim See to be appointed as Vice Mayor.
Councilman See agreed to the nomination. 

 MCDONALD/SCHOONOVER Moved to Adopt Resolution No. 22-10, 
Appointing A Vice Major for the City of 
Craig.  
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY BY 
ROLL CALL VOTE 

4. Spruce Street Wood Water Tank Salvage

SEE/SCHOONOVER
Move to approve the removal of the         
Spruce Street Wood Water tank  
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY BY 
VOICE VOTE 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None. 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Spruce Street Water Tank Salvage.  Brian Templin discussed with the council that the Spruce
Street Water Tank needs to be removed and that there were persons interested in salvaging the

Return to Top



tank.  This would result in substantial savings to the city.  The council gave staff direction to 
advertise for proposals for removal of the tank. 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Councilman See brought up that we should increase the payment the City of Klawock gives to us 
to use our fire, EMS, and police dispatch.  He also mentioned that we have not made an increase 
to the dispatch fee in quite some time and that the original intent of the fee structure was to pay for 
one dispatcher and that the cost of a dispatcher had increased significantly since the fee was last 
adjusted. See also expressed his frustration regarding the halt in the dock project that potentially 
could have started this coming fall. 

ADJOURNMENT 

SEE/MCDONALD     Moved to adjourn at 7:35 p.m. 
MOTION CARRIED  

APPROVED on the _____ day of ________________, _____. 

ATTEST:  
MAYOR TIMOTHY O’CONNOR TRINITY SCHEIDECKER, CLERK PRO-TEM 

Return to Top



CITY OF CRAIG 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-11 

AUTHORIZING THE CRAIG CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT TO EXECUTE ALL 
AGREEMENTS AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS WITH THE US 

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, RURAL DEVELOPMENT REGARDING 
GRANTS RELATED TO THE BIOMASS BOILER AT THE CRAIG HIGH 

SCHOOL  

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of the land and facilities at the Craig High School; and, 

WHEREAS, the Craig City School District is working to install a biomass heating system at the 
Craig High School; and, 

WHEREAS, the City has traditionally given authority to the Craig City School District to 
manage the lands and facilities that the school campuses are located on with great latitude; and, 

WHEREAS, the Craig City School District is currently working with the US Department of 
Agriculture, Rural Development on grants related to the biomass heating system at the Craig 
High School; and, 

WHEREAS, the US Department of Agriculture, Rural Development requires that the City, as the 
owner of the facility, be responsible for executing grant documents OR that the City of Craig 
grant authority to the School District to execute the grant and all associated documents; and, 

WHEREAS, the Craig City Council has determined that it is in both the city’s and the school 
district’s best interest to grant said authority to the school district. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Council for the City of Craig, Alaska fully 
grants the Craig City School District authority to execute all grant agreements, amendments and 
other grant documents with the US Department of Agriculture, Rural Development for work 
related to the installation of a biomass heating system at the Craig High School. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Council for the City of Craig, 
Alaska further authorizes the Craig City School District authority to modify the Craig High 
School (and supporting lands) as necessary to install a biomass heating system at the Craig High 
School. 

APPROVED this ______ day of April, 2022 

____________________________________ __________________________________ 
MAYOR TIM O’CONNOR  HEATHER MENDONSSA, CITY CLERK 

Return to Top



CITY OF CRAIG 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Craig City Council  
From: Brian Templin, City Administrator 
Date: April 15, 2022 
RE: Resolution 22-11 – Authorizing the Craig City School District to Execute Documents 

Related to Grants for the Biomass Boiler 

Attached you will find Resolution 22-11.  The resolution authorizes the Craig City School 
District to sign grant documents related to the biomass boiler installation project at the Craig 
High School..  

The city owns the land and buildings but generally gives most authority and latitude to make 
improvements and repairs to those buildings to the school district.  Because of USDA 
requirements the city (as the owner) must either sign the documents or grant authority 
specifically to the school district for this project. 

The attached resolution grants authority to the CCSD to sign all grant documents related to this 
project. 

Recommendation 
Adopt Resolution 22-11 authorizing the CCSD to execute grant documents related to the 
biomass boiler project at the Craig High School..

Return to Top



Return to Top



CITY OF CRAIG 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Craig City Council 
From: Brian Templin, City Administrator 
Date: April 7, 2022 
RE: Consider Confirmation of City Clerk Appointment 

Following the notice of resignation of Tracey Jensen from the position of City Clerk, staff 
advertised the vacancy publicly to encourage applications to fill the position.   

A committee of staff interviewed several candidates for the vacant position.  Mayor O’Connor 
and I concluded that Ms. Heather Mendonsa is the best fit for the vacant position.  

A copy of Ms. Mendonsa’s application is attached.  

Ms. Mendonsa is currently under contract with Southeast Island School District and won’t be 
available to work full time in the position until after June 1st.  We will start her working part time 
on an hourly basis as her work schedule allows.  

Section 2.04.040.C of the Craig Municipal Codes provides for the appointment of some 
department manager positions by the mayor, including the city clerk position, subject to 
confirmation of the city council.   

Recommendation 
Confirm, by motion, appointment of Heather Mendonsa to the position of City Clerk. 

Return to Top



Return to Top



Return to Top



Return to Top



CITY OF CRAIG 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Craig Mayor and City Council 
From: Brian Templin, City Administrator 
Date: April 10, 2022 
RE: Derby Discussion  

As the council is aware the city has hosted the annual King Salmon Derby.  In past years 
the “profit” from the derby has gone to the Prince of Wales Hatchery Association.  Since 
SSRAA took over operations of the hatchery, and with them assuming all operations 
costs, we have been putting the funds into a savings account. 

First, I want to say that the derby is a popular event and the derby dinner even more 
popular. Staff has discussed this issue and agrees that the derby should continue. 

There is an opportunity to revamp the beneficiaries of the derby and continue operations.  
This gives us a chance to support some other causes with the reduced request for funding 
from the hatchery.  We also can provide support to the hatchery on an ongoing basis. 

Currently there is just over $55,000 in savings in the Hatchery Savings Account.  Some 
of this is proceeds from recent year’s derbies.  The council should discuss what to do 
with these funds and what to do with future derby funds. 

There are a number of options for using the existing savings: 
 Make an outright donation to SSRAA for $55,000 (or some portion of the savings

account)
 Make some improvements to the water system that would benefit the hatchery

operation at SSRAA
 Add the funds to the $15,000 already in savings for some purchase of

halibut/sablefish quota under the CQE program.
 Move the funds to the Capital Reserve Fund (CRF) for general distribution for

capital projects.
 The council should feel free to make some other suggestion of how to best use

these funds.

In addition to disposition of the existing savings account, there are a number of good 
options for use of the “profits” from the annual sale of derby tickets.  These include: 

 Annual donation to SSRAA to assist with hatchery operations at Port St.
Nicholas.

 Annual donation to the Craig Childcare Center (or some future organization
providing childcare at the city facility)

 Use the funds generated from the derby to continue to fund future purchase of
IFQ for the CQE program.

 Annual donation to some other organization chosen by the council.

Return to Top



 Any combination of the above.

Revenue from the derby should also cover the city cost of printing tickets and publicity 
materials; pay for the derby dinner and should make some payment to the city to cover 
personnel costs for time spent on the derby. 

It is also important to note that the derby donations could be split on some percentage 
basis (i.e. 50% to SSRAA and 50% to the Childcare Center). 

Staff is also discussing some changes to the derby program in order to streamline ticket 
and cash management.  For example, we are strongly considering offering a discount to 
lodges who buy whole books of tickets up front.  The lodges can use the tickets for 
clients and any leftover at the end of the season can be given to staff or entered into the 
grand prize drawing. 

We are also looking at the payout structure to see if we can adjust it to provide more 
funding for the beneficiaries.  Current the derby is paid out as follows. 

 Grand Prize Drawing (held at the derby dinner) - $10,000
 Largest King Salmon - $3,000
 2nd Prize King Salmon - $2,000
 3rd Prize King Salmon - $1,000

The council should discuss a number of items related to the King Salmon Derby, 
including: 

1. Should the derby continue now that the primary reason for holding it has
changed?

2. Should there be any changes to the structure of the derby?
3. How should the derby proceeds be used?
4. Should we reconsider some of the prize amounts?
5. Any other issues related to the derby that the council wants to discuss.

Recommendation:  The council should discuss the issue and provide some direction to 
council on these issues.  A formal motion is not required if the council comes to a 
consensus on the direction for staff.  

Return to Top


	00 04-21-22 Agenda AMENDED
	03-01 04-07-22 Meeting Minutes
	ROLL CALL
	CONSENT AGENDA

	04-01 07-01 Resolution 22-11 Authorization To Execute Grant Documents for School District
	06-01 School Donation
	08-01 Heather Mendonsa Appointment Memo
	MEMORANDUM

	08-01-01 Heather Mendonsa Application
	08-02 Derby Discussion Memo April 2022
	MEMORANDUM


